Health in Dacorum
Agenda

BOROUGH
COUNCIL

Thursday 18 July 2024 at 7.30 pm

Conference Room 2 - The Forum

Scrutiny making a positive difference: Member led and independent, Overview & Scrutiny
Committee promote service improvements, influence policy development & hold Executive to
account for the benefit of the Community of Dacorum.

The Councillors listed below are requested to attend the above meeting, on the day and at the time
and place stated, to consider the business set out in this agenda.

Membership
Councillor Bhinder Councillor McArevey (Chair)
Councillor Bristow Councillor Patterson
Councillor Cox Councillor Pound
Councillor Elliot Councillor Pringle (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Hannell Councillor Smith-Wright
Councillor Link Councillor Williams

Councillor Maddern

Substitute Members:
Councillors

Outside Representatives:

Contributors:

For further information, please contact Corporate and Democratic Support

AGENDA

1. MINUTES
To confirm the minutes from the previous meeting

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE



10.

11.

To receive any apologies for absence
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive any declarations of interest

A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a personal interest in a matter who
attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is considered -

(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest
becomes apparent

and, if the interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest, or a personal interest which is
also prejudicial

(i) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter (and must withdraw
to the public seating area) unless they have been granted a dispensation.

A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which is not
registered in the Members’ Register of Interests, or is not the subject of a pending
notification, must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days of the
disclosure.

Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal and prejudicial interests are defined in Part 2
of the Code of Conduct For Members

[If @ member is in any doubt as to whether they have an interest which should be
declared they should seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer before the start of the
meeting]

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

An opportunity for members of the public to make statements or ask questions in
accordance with the rules as to public participation

WARD ISSUES (Pages 3 - 4)

WEST HERTS HOSPITAL TRUST

HERTFORDSHIRE AND WEST ESSEX INTEGRATED CARE BOARD
COUNTY COUNCIL HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT
COUNTY COUNCIL ADULT CARE SERVICES REPORT

HEALTH CAMPUS

WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 5 - 33)



Agenda Iltem 5

Ward Update

Highfield
| am aware of unpaid carers in Highfield who are caring for family across
Dacorum and struggling to meet needs due to properties not meeting need.
One case has seen an individual lose quality of life completely due to having
no independence left caused by the inaccessibility of her flat. This is obviously
affecting the health of the whole family as the levels the family including
children under 16 are having to go to to maintain the safety of their beloved
family member are above and beyond.

Hemel

Hempstead On Saturday 18™ May, several councillors met up in Hemel Town Centre to

Town pick up litter. We had a positive response from residents who were pleased
to see us taking action.
The bulk of the litter was, sadly, cigarette butts, including a huge quantity
around the seating area just off Bridge Street (outside Boots). It was
suggested that some residents spend hours each day hanging out and
smoking in the area. This might be a good opportunity for some action by the
smoking cessation team, either in person or with posters placed around the
area.

No updates

received from

other wards

Page 3



absolutely

Together 222

Puttmg Smﬂes on Faces

SMILES FOR DACORUM

pporting families with children
Dacorum this spring and summer
ess to a wide range of family leisure
activities.

gLL H “ |‘ ”

ACTIVITIES AVAILAE

Odean Cinema Tickets
Theatre Tickets (Aylesbury)
Accessible Karting (Aylesbury)
Family Swim Sessions (Hemel Hempstead)
Family Tenpin Bowling Sessions (Aylesbury)
Family Tickets to The Bucks Goat Centre
Cloud 9 Inflatable Park(Hemel Hempstead)

. Climbing, Skate Park Access and High Ropes (Hemel Hempstead)
. Foot or Disc Golf (Hemel Hempstead)
. Plus Much More

i charity number- 1152093



LS L8

www.dacorum.gov.uk

Health and Wellbeing Committee

BOROUGH
COUNCIL

Report for: Health and Wellbeing Committee
Title of report: Hemel Health Campus
Date: 18th July 2024

Report on behalf of: | Councillor Sheron Wilkie, Portfolio Holder for Place

Part: |

If Part Il, reason:

Appendices: Appendix 1 — Internal Project Board Governance

Appendix 2 — Draft Project Initiation Document

Background papers: | None

Glossary of HWE ICB — Hertfordshire and West Essex Integrated Care Board
acronyms and any WHTH - West Hertfordshire Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust
other abbreviations

used in this report:

Report Author / Responsible Officer

Diane Southam — Assistant Director Place Community and Enterprise

= O©
)
Corporate Priorities A clean, safe and enjoyable environment
Building strong and vibrant communities
Ensuring economic growth and prosperity
Ensuring efficient, effective and modern service delivery
Climate and ecological emergency
Wards affected All wards
Purpose of the report: 1. To provide an update on the Hemel Health Campus
project
Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s): 1. That Members note the report and provide any
comments to Cabinet
D [

laValVal
age o


https://dacorum-mail.co.uk/3QGJ-1BNTK-10QSOQ-UU20E-1/c.aspx
https://dacorum-mail.co.uk/3QGJ-1BNTK-10QSOQ-UU20F-1/c.aspx
https://dacorum-mail.co.uk/3QGJ-1BNTK-10QSOQ-UU20G-1/c.aspx
https://dacorum-mail.co.uk/3QGJ-1BNTK-10QSOQ-UU20H-1/c.aspx

Period for post policy/project review: N/A

1.

Background

1.1. The Council, (DBC), Hertfordshire and West Essex Integrated Care Board, (HWE ICB) and West
Hertfordshire Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust, (WHTH) have collectively, as the main partners,
identified Market Square in Hemel Hempstead Town Centre as the potential location for a new
Health Campus.

1.2. To support the development of plans the partners jointly funded an initial high level feasibility
study, prepared by Turner and Townsend during 2023 who were appointed through the DBC
commissioning process.

1.3. WHTH then commissioned architecture firm BDP to provide design support to the project and to
provide illustrative designs based on indicative space requirements.

1.4. This work demonstrated that Market Square was of adequate size and a good location to pursue
as a town centre option.

1.5. The three partners have confirmed ongoing support for building on the Turner and Townsend
report and the Leader announced this at Full Council on 15" November 2023 with a subsequent
joint press release.

Current Position

2.1.In order to develop a Strategic Outline Business Case for all partners to take through their
respective governance approvals, a more detailed feasibility study will need to be undertaken,
building on the Turner and Townsend commission.

2.2.To enable this, a PID has been developed jointly by the partners and is attached at Appendix 2 to
this report.

2.3.The Council’'s governance process will be through the established Project Management Office
(PMO) process and an internal Project Board will be established. The proposed Project Board is
attached at Appendix 1 to this report and will report to the Capital Programme Board.

2.4.A detailed project plan will be developed by the partners, and this will include appropriate
gateways for approvals to move through the process. This will help mitigate potential abortive
costs.

Health Facilities in the High Street

3.1.There are a number of reports and studies identifying the benefits of health facilities being
located in high streets and town centre that support the recommended approach to the Health
Campus project including:

3.1.1. Local Government Association ‘ Shopping for Health’

3.1.1.1. Building health into the high street has multiple benefits. It can play an important
role in addressing health inequalities, offer much-needed additional capacity for
health service delivery and attract more people into their local high street, while
encouraging healthier lifestyles. Not only would more people visit and use high
streets, the types, ethos and diversity would change. Those who may not use high
streets regularly to shop would, for example, use them to attend health services,
making more vibrant community spaces.

3.1.1.2. As high streets tend to be at the centre of public transport networks, this can make

a wide range of health services more accessible to people and, importantly,
increase their engagement and effectiveness.

Page 6



3.1.2. NHS Confederation ‘ Health on the High Street’

3.1.2.1. “We have a generational opportunity not only to rethink what NHS services could
more effectively be delivered on the high street, but to sustainably embed them at the
heart of a diverse new community offer.” - Michael Wood, Head of Health Economic
Partnerships, NHS Confederation

3.1.2.2. "Health and wellbeing are central to community life and a new vision of a civic,
more community-centred high street must have health services at its heart and
promote healthy living." - Ailbhe McNabola, Head of Research and Policy, Power to
Change

3.1.3. The Grimsey Review 2

3.1.3.1. There is a need for all towns to develop plans that are business-like and focused
on transforming the place into a complete community hub incorporating health,
housing, arts, education, entertainment, leisure, business/office space, as well as
some shops, while developing a unique selling proposition (USP).

4. Project Benefits — Section 4 of PID

4.1.The strategic drivers and benefits are set out in Section 4 of the PID and summarised below
These include the wider economic, place making and benefits of having the Health Campus in
the town centre to highlight why the council should be supporting the project with its resources
including funding.

4.2.Healthcare provision in more modern, fit for purpose infrastructure

4.3.Consistency with the HWE Integrated Care Strategy, WHTH’s Clinical Brief and wider
Redevelopment Programme as well as strategies for individual provider Trusts.

4.4. lmprovements to health and wellbeing of Dacorum residents through easily accessible co-located
health services

4.5.Improved healthcare infrastructure that will increase footfall, to act as a catalyst for further
regeneration of Town Centre environment

4.6.Increased footfall into the town centre will support local businesses and economic recovery

4.7.Potential for wider strategic benefits for the Borough, through inclusion of residential and
commercial units that could support housing need and financial sustainability. This will provide
much needed homes in the town centre and support the case for improvements to the night time
economy.

4.8.Bringing underused public held land back into use, bettering the healthcare infrastructure than
that which exists at the current hospital site, and improvements to connectivity and the public
realm at a key and strategic town centre site

4.9.Disposal of land for (probable) housing development in Hemel Hempstead

5. Strategic Outline Business Case — Sections 3 of PID

5.1.The next stage of feasibility will inform the Strategic Outline Business Case, which is the first
stage in the development of a Full Business Case. The outputs and outcomes of this next stage
are shown in Section 3 of the PID and summarised below:

5.2.Outputs
5.2.1. Establishment of strategic and delivery boards
5.2.2. Completed Options Appraisal — to include
5.2.2.1.  List of services to be accommodated within each identified option
5.2.2.2. Cost Review
5.2.2.3.  Funding and Cashflow Strategy

Page 7



5.2.2.4.  Delivery Model Options
5.2.3. High level spatial planning exercise
5.2.4. Land reviews and valuations
5.2.5. Land Assembly Strategy as required and appropriate
5.2.6. Establishment of Project Plan, Risk Log, Communications Plan, Quality Plan and Project
Controls, for inclusion within the Strategic Outline Case
5.2.7. Completed Strategic Outline Case

5.3.0utcomes
5.3.1. Approval of Strategic Outline Case by all partners
5.3.2. Agreement of preferred way forward for scope of scheme and funding/delivery
5.3.3. Confirmation of capital and revenue funding arrangements for preferred way forward
5.3.4. Confirmation of anticipated delivery model and roles and responsibilities of key partners
for further business case development and project delivery
5.3.5. Agreement to proceed to next stage of Project (Outline Business Case development)

6. Whole Project — Section 3 of PID

6.1.While the PID is primarily centred on the delivery of the next stage of feasibility, it does reflect on
the high levels outputs and outcomes from the delivery of the whole project. These are shown in
Section 3 of the PID and summarised below.

6.2. Outputs
6.2.1. Secured funding for full project delivery
6.2.2. Purchase of any privately-owned property required to deliver the project
6.2.3. Disposal of surplus assets with sale receipts reinvested locally
6.2.4. Successful relocation of services from existing facilities
6.3.0utcomes
6.3.1. Construction of new fit-for-purpose healthcare facility
6.3.2. Business/retail floorspace created
6.3.3. Creation of new place within Hemel Town Centre, including improvement to the public
realm and overall appearance of the town centre

7. Project Scope

7.1.The project scope for the next stage of works is set out in Section 5 of the PID. This identifies the
work to be undertaken building on the Turner and Townsend commission to inform and support
the development of the business case. The scope is summarised below:

7.2.The key purpose of the Strategic Outline Case is to:
7.2.1. establish the strategic context for the spending proposal
7.2.2. evidence the case for change
7.2.3. establish the preferred way forward based on a range of options

7.3.The detail of the Strategic Outline Case will include:
7.3.1. Collation and detailed review of the current and future projected activity numbers for all
services and patient groups
7.3.2. Land valuation exercises for both current hospital site and Market Square
7.3.3. Consideration of finance options
7.3.4. Long and short list of options, identifying the preferred way forward in Hemel Hempstead.
7.3.5. Consideration of implementation options.

Page 8



9.

8. Governance — Section 8 of PID

8.1.The joint project governance is set out in Section 8 of the PID. In addition to this, it is recognised
that all partners will have their own governance approval processes and these are set out in
Appendix 3 to the PID.

8.2.Council governance will be through established PMO process and an internal Project Board will
be established and is set out in Appendix 1.

8.3.A joint governance structure will be established and full details are set out in the PID. These
consist of the following:
8.3.1. Executive Sponsor Group — will meet at each gateway approval AND at least 6 monthly.
8.3.2. Executive Joint Board — will meet at least quarterly
8.3.3. Joint Strategic Board — will meet monthly
8.3.4. Joint Project Board — will meet fortnightly
8.3.5. Joint Project Delivery Team — will meet weekly

8.4.1t should be noted that meetings will only be held if appropriate and necessary to ensure the
project is progressing

8.5.1CB and WHTH will be project leads for procurement and recruitment but all partners will
contribute to the preparation of procurement briefs and job description.

Risks — Section 7 of PID

9.1. High level risks are set out in Appendix 4 to the PID.

9.2. A detailed risk register will be developed as the project is progressed.

9.3. A key risk to be identified through our governance approvals is that the expenditure could be

abortive if the project doesn’t progress to delivery.

9.4. To mitigate this, the detailed project plan will include gateway approvals to enable the partners to
agree to the next stage of work throughout this next stage. This will need to be reflected in the
procurement briefs and consultant appointments.

9.5. Another key risk is the resource capacity of partners to take the project forward. To mitigate this,
the costs include the appointment of a Project Manager dedicated to delivering this next stage of
works.

10. Financial Implications — Section 6 of PID

10.1. It has been agreed that the three main partners will jointly fund the next stage of works and this is

what is being recommended through partner’'s governance approval processes.

10.2. The estimated costs for the next stage of works is £500,000. This has been provided by health

partners based on other projects. However it needs to be recognised that the detailed briefs and
scope of works for the commissioning process have to be developed and are subject to the
outcomes of the procurement exercise.

10.3. This is an estimated figure, to cover externally sourced expertise such as (but not limited to):

10.3.1. Project Manager

10.3.2. Design Team

10.3.3. Town planning consultants
10.3.4. Valuation advisers

10.3.5. Constructions cost consultants

Page 9



10.3.6. Health planners
10.3.7. Business case and financial expertise
10.3.8. Communications and engagement

10.4. The Council’s share of this estimate is £167,000.

10.5. It is recommended that a contingency element is added to this to mitigate the need to seek
further funding approvals if required and so it is recommended that approval is sought for
£200,000.

10.6. It is recommended this is funded from Dacorum Development Reserve.

10.7. Once the Strategic Business Case is complete, continuing to the next stages will require further
funding and the Strategic Outline Business Case will set out proposals for this as part of the
funding and delivery options

11. Next Steps

11.1. The next steps will be
11.1.1. Cabinet — 23" July 2024

11.2. To note, health partners’ governance timetable means the Cabinet report may be able to reflect
their approvals to the PID and funding or a verbal update will be given.

11.3. The Joint Project Board, supported by the Joint Strategic Board will progress the procurement
briefs and job description for the Project Manager while approval processes are in train to avoid
wasted time

12. Options

12.1. Agree to the approach and recommendations as set out in the reports — this will enable the
project to progress, for the Council to be an equal partner in shaping the outcomes of the work.
This will ensure full consideration is given to the broader benefits of the scheme to support the
delivery of the Council’s Place agenda and objectives. This option is recommended.

12.2. Not agreeing to the approach and recommendations set out in the report — This could result
in the Health Campus not progressing in the town centre or, if it does proceed, would limit the
scope to influence the outcomes. Given that the Council is also the owner of the Market Square,
its extensive involvement in the project is considered essential. As such this option is not
recommended.

Page 10



NHS|

Hertfordshire and

West Essex
Integrated Care Board

INHS|
BOROUGH West Hertfordshire

Teaching Hospitals
COUNCIL g NESTrust

Hemel Health Campus

Project Initiation Document

Version 15
Issue Date 22" May 2024
Status DRAFT

Page 11



Table of Contents

1. PUrpoSse Of DOCUMENT........coiiiiiiii e e e e e e et eaae s 3
2. BaACKGIOUNG ... 3
3. OULPULS AN ODJECLIVES ....uui it e e e et e e e e e e aarra s 4
4. Strategic Drivers and BEnefitS .........oooviiiiiiiiii 5
5. (T T=To Aot o] o 1= PSS 6
6. (00011 £ TSSO PP TPPPPTR 7
7. RISKS @N0 CONSIIAINTS. ... ettt aesaesnnnnnne 9
8. PrOJECT GOVEIMANCE ...t 10
9. = Vo P 14
10. T T=To Y o] o (0 = Tod o PP PSR 16
11. S t= 1G] 1] 0 = PP 16
Appendix 1 — Indicative High Level Project Plan ............ccccoooiiiiiiiiiiii e, 17
Appendix 2 — NHS/ICB DecCision GateWay Map ..........ccouuviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeieeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 18
Appendix 3 — Partner Organisation Governance Arrangements for Strategic Outline Case

Y= [0 [P RUPPPPPPPTT 19
Appendix 4 — RiSk RegiSter (Draft) ........ccooveiiiiiiiii i e e e e aanees 20
Appendix 5 — HWE ICS Strategy and StrategiC Framework ..............cccccvvvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiennn, 21
Appendix 6 — Memorandum of Understanding (To Follow Separately)..........cccccccvvvvviiiennnnn. 22

Version Control

Version Description of version change ‘ Date Owner
0.1 First Draft — issued to project team 23/02/24 | Rob Emmins
0.2 Second Draf; — updated and reissued 07/03/24 | Rob Emmins
following project group feedback
0.3 Third _Draft — updated and reissued 26/03/24 | Rob Emmins
following further feedback
0.4 U.pdate(_j and rels_sued following _ 28/03/24 | Rob Emmins
discussion at project group meeting
05 Draft_to be finalised at project group 16/04/24 | Rob Emmins
meeting
Final version agreed at project group .
1.0 meeting on 17/04/24 18/04/24 | Rob Emmins
11 Update_d fo’llowmg feedback from Chief 07/05/24 | Rob Emmins
Executives’ Meeting
Final changes agreed between HWB ICB, :
1.2 DBC and WHTH 20/05/24 Rob Emmins
1.3 Drafting changes 21/05/24 | Alex White
14 Drafting changes 21/05/24 | Alex White
15 Drafting changes 22/05/24 | Alex White
Page 12

2|Page




1. Purpose of Document

This Project Initiation Document (PID) sets out why and how the initial stages of this project
should proceed, who is involved and what their responsibilities are. It will provide a baseline
for the future management of the project and for an assessment of its overall success.

2. Background

Recent discussions between local stakeholders, including Dacorum Borough Council (DBC),
West Hertfordshire Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust (WHTH) and Hertfordshire and West Essex
Integrated Care Board (HWE ICB), collectively the main partners, have seen Market Square
in the Hemel Hempstead Town Centre identified as a potential location for the establishment
of a new Healthcare Campus, as part of a regeneration plan for the area. Consideration of this
scheme has identified an opportunity for WHTH’s secondary care services to be relocated to
this new site, along with community, mental health and general practice health services from
other providers. There is also potential for the inclusion of residential and commercial units
within the overall development as well as on the existing hospital site if redeveloped to support
wider strategic objectives for regeneration and housing within Dacorum Borough. This will be
further explored at the next stage of business case planning together with other options
including NHS land holdings.

To support development of plans, the partners agreed to commission a feasibility study. An
initial, high level feasibility study report was prepared by Turner and Townsend for the partners
through DBC’s commissioning process. As a result of this study, the partners, recognising that
all business cases are based on a five-case model believe there is a strong strategic case to
provide a healthcare facility in a central and accessible site in Hemel Hempstead Town Centre.
Further work on the merits of such a facility exploration of other options will be needed at the
next stage of Business Case development.

WHTH then commissioned architecture firm BDP to provide design support to the project, to
further explore the feasibility of this opportunity, and to provide illustrative designs and
drawings within indicative space requirements. The outcome of that work demonstrated that
Market Square was of adequate size and a good location to pursue for the town centre option.
DBC have carried out a high-level report on Title confirming that they have ownership and
control over the land. If additional land is required around Market Square, as the Business
Case is developed, DBC has confirmed that it will initiate contact with relevant landowners.
DBC also owns the freehold of the Civic Centre site and the Forum. WHTH own the freehold
of the existing hospital site where CLCH are tenants, Hertfordshire Partnership University NHS
Foundation Trust (HPFT) owns a freehold site in Hemel Hempstead (St Paul’s, Slippers Hill)
and there are also NHS leasehold interests on primary and secondary healthcare assets within
the town centre.

Up to the commencement of the governance arrangements articulated in this document, the
Project has been developed through collective working between WHTH, DBC and HWE ICB
and has primarily focussed on the initial assessment of the Project’s high-level feasibility.

The partners have agreed and confirmed ongoing support for building on the previous work
carried out by officers of the three parties and external consultants Turner and Townsend who
produced the feasibility study, where the work and costs were equally divided.

Further work will include:
o Development of Strategic Outline Case
o Development of Outline Business Case
e Development of Full Business Case

Page 13

3|Page



The Parties, including DBC, NHS Commissioners and NHS Providers, will develop a Strategic
Outline Case (including an Estates Feasibility Study to RIBA stages 1 and 2), according to the
HM Treasury Green Book principles. At this time, future roles and responsibilities are not
known for funding the ongoing planning, nor delivery and ownership of the development. It is
proposed that this should form part of the next stage, and that there will be a shared
contribution towards development of the Strategic Outline Business Case, split equally
between the three main stakeholders (see Section 11). Negotiations and appointment of
consultancy, architectural and engineering expertise will be overseen by members of the Joint
Project Board. Joint governance arrangements are covered in section 8 of this PID, and the
accompanying Memorandum of Understanding.

3. Outputs and Objectives

The primary objective of this project is to identify the best option to improve local existing and
aged healthcare infrastructure and to improve overall access to healthcare. This in turn has
the potential to improve health outcomes and the overall well-being of residents, whilst also
acting as a catalyst for further regeneration in the town centre through increased overall
footfall. This will provide confidence to landowners, developers, and potential investors that
the ambitions for the town centre, as set out in the Hemel Hempstead Town Centre Vision,
are being delivered.

As stated above, there is also potential for the inclusion of residential and commercial units
within options, to support wider strategic objectives for regeneration and housing within
Dacorum Borough and support the commercial case for the project. This will be further
explored at the next stage of business case planning.

3.1 Qutputs:

High Level Project Outputs

Secured funding for full project delivery

Purchase of any privately-owned property required to deliver the project
Disposal of surplus assets with sale receipts reinvested locally
Successful relocation of services from existing facilities

Strategic Outline Case Stage Outputs

e Establishment of strategic and delivery boards
Completed Options Appraisal — to include
o List of services to be accommodated within each identified option
o Cost Review
o Funding and Cashflow Strategy
o Delivery Model Options
High level spatial planning exercise
Land reviews and valuations
Land Assembly Strategy as required and appropriate
Establishment of Project Plan, Risk Log, Communications Plan, Quality Plan and
Project Controls, for inclusion within the Strategic Outline Case

o Completed Strategic Outline Case

3.2 Outcomes:

Page 14

4|Page



High Level Project Outcomes

e Construction of new fit-for-purpose healthcare facility (subject to funding and
specification) for use by primary care and secondary care (including hospital,
community and mental healthcare) services.

e Business/retail floorspace created (subject to commercial terms)

Creation of new place within Hemel Town Centre, including improvement to the public
realm and overall appearance of the town centre

Strategic Outline Case Stage Outcomes

Approval of Strategic Outline Case by all partners

Agreement of preferred way forward for scope of scheme and funding/delivery
Confirmation of capital and revenue funding arrangements for preferred way forward
Confirmation of anticipated delivery model and roles and responsibilities of key
partners for further business case development and project delivery

o Agreement to proceed to next stage of Project (Outline Business Case development)

4. Strategic Drivers and Benefits
NHS Drivers

The NHS operates under various strategic drivers, which this project aims to support and
contribute to having regard to the Integrated Healthcare Strategy that was ratified in December
2022 (see Appendix 5). Some of these are listed below:

Integrated Care Systems (ICSs)
Prevention and Population Health
Digital Transformation

Workforce Development

Financial Sustainability and Efficiency
Health and Social Care Integration
Health Inequalities

Quality Improvement

WHTH Acute Redevelopment Programme

West Hertfordshire Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust is currently developing an Acute
Redevelopment Programme, which will result in an Outline Business Case setting out the
case for significant investment in the Trust estate. This will align with the NHS Long Term
Plan, and fits within the HWE Integrated Care Strategy ‘A Healthier Future’, delivering a
clinical model which includes the separation of emergency and planned care and the
construction of new hospital buildings to address significant estates issues. Although this
programme previously envisaged the refurbishment of existing accommodation on the
Hemel Hempstead Hospital site, the proposed development of a Healthcare Campus in the
town centre is entirely complimentary to the programme and has therefore been put forward
for consideration.

Project Benefits

Anticipated benefits from delivery of this project include:

Page 15

5|Page



Healthcare provision in more modern, fit for purpose infrastructure in Hemel
Hempstead

Consistency with the HWE Integrated Care Strategy, WHTH’s Clinical Brief and wider
Redevelopment Programme as well as strategies for individual provider Trusts
Improvements to health and wellbeing of Dacorum residents through easily accessible
co-located health services

Improved accessibility to healthcare for local residents

Improved healthcare infrastructure that will increase footfall, to act as a catalyst for
further regeneration of Town Centre environment

Increased footfall into the town centre, will support local businesses and economic
recovery

Potential for wider strategic benefits for the Borough, through inclusion of residential
and commercial units that could support housing need and financial sustainability. This
will provide much needed homes in the town centre and support the case for
improvements to the nighttime economy

Bringing underused public held land back into use, bettering the healthcare
infrastructure than that which exists at the current hospital site, and improvements to
connectivity and the public realm at a key and strategic town centre site

Disposal of land for (probable) housing development in Hemel Hempstead

5. Project Scope

Services

The next stage of the project (Strategic Outline Case, see below) includes a review of the
range of health and care services being considered for inclusion as well as the potential to
include residential and commercial services within the development.

This review will:

Start with an in-depth analysis of current and future health needs of the Dacorum
population.

Act in accordance with the previously agreed clinical brief for the Hemel site and an
assumption that the range of services currently providing in HHH will continue to be
provided in a new campus facility

Identify any opportunities to further strengthen the local health and care offer to local
residents, drawing on identified best practice and the analysis of the future health
needs of the Dacorum population

Bring a proposition together for consideration by the relevant parties (ICB, DBC, WHTH
etc)

Scope of Stage 2 - Strategic Outline Case

The key purpose of the Strategic Outline Case is to:

establish the strategic context for the spending proposal
evidence the case for change
establish the preferred way forward based on a range of options

The detail of the Strategic Outline Case will include:

Collation and detailed review of the current and future projected activity numbers for
all services and patient groups

Land valuation exercises for both current hospital site and Market Square
Consideration of finance options

Page 16

6|Page



e Long and short list of options, identifying the preferred way forward in Hemel
Hempstead.
e Consideration of implementation options.

Scoping the proposal and preparing the Strategic Outline Case (SOC) is the first stage in
developing the project business case for a significant scheme using the Five Case Model. In
line with the Government’s Green Book 2018, the case will include several key sections aimed
at defining the project's strategic objectives, scope, feasibility, and high-level approach?.
These are listed below:

e Making the case for change
o Agree strategic context
= Organisation Overview
= Alignment to existing policies and strategies
o Determine spending objectives, existing arrangements and business needs
= Determine spending objectives
= Determine existing arrangements
= |dentify business needs
o Determine potential business scope and key service requirements
o Determine benefits, risks, constraints and dependencies
= |dentify the main benefits
= |dentify the main risks
= |dentify the constraints
= |dentify the dependencies

e Exploring the preferred way forward

o Agree critical success factors for the project

o Determine the long-list options and undertake SWOT analysis
= |dentify options
= Options Framework
= Use the Options Framework to identify the long list
= Draft the long list

o Recommend a preferred way forward
= Draft the short-list

6. Costs

Capital Costs

Indicative costs for this project are yet to be worked up in detail, and so the figures below
should only be considered indicative.

o Costs for development of Strategic Outline Case (Stage 2): The estimated cost of this
stage is in the region of £500,000. This is an estimated figure, to cover externally
sourced expertise such as (but not limited to):

o Project Manager
Design team
Town planning consultants
Valuation advisers
Construction cost consultants
Health planners
Business case and financial expertise

O O O O O O

1 Guide to developing the Project Business Case,
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/5bc72a97ed915d0ad7db6cdO/Project Business Case

2018.pdf

Page 17

7|Page


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/5bc72a97ed915d0ad7db6cd0/Project_Business_Case_2018.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/5bc72a97ed915d0ad7db6cd0/Project_Business_Case_2018.pdf

o Communications and engagement

The cost for the development of the Strategic Outline Case is to be shared equally
between the three main partners, each adhering to their own governance
arrangements for this budget approval:

o HWE ICB - Finance and Investment Committee 14" May 2024

o DBC — Cabinet 23 July 2024

o WHTH - Finance and Performance Committee 23 May 2024

Full Project Cost (construction and delivery): This will be determined as the project
progresses. The SOC will set out the high-level estimates under identified options.

The parties acknowledge the necessity for composite funding. Sources of funding

could include:

=  Government funding (primarily NHS funding sources, as well as other potential
sources including Brown Land Release Fund)

= Sale receipts derived from released NHS assets

= Developers’ contribution via CIL or S106

* Private investment

Page 18

8|Page



Revenue Costs

Revenue costs associated with the project have not yet been identified and will form part of
the SOC for a range of options.

Contributions

The proposed arrangement is for costs for the immediate next stage to be split equally
between the project’s three main stakeholders.

7. Risks and Constraints

The Project Risks and Issues will be identified and monitored in a Risk Register. A short list
of immediately identified risks are listed below.

Risks

o Failure to identify sufficient funding source(s)

o Failure to secure disposal of WHTH land in Hemel Hempstead

e Securing planning consent on options identified and maximising densities to yield
best sale values

o 2024 General Election and potential change of Government could affect timescale for
delivery

e Local and/or regional opposition

Constraints
e Ensuring continuity of healthcare outcomes
e Cashflow for full project

A detailed Risk Register of the initially identified risks can be found in Appendix 4, below,
and will be further developed in the next stage of the project.

Page 19

9|Page



8. Project Governance

Executive Individual
Sponsor Group Stakeholder
Boards

Executive Joint
Board

Joint Strategic
Board

Joint Project
Board

Joint Project
DEINEIALREIR

The structure diagram above sets out the proposed structure for the development and delivery
of the Project. Each group within the structure shall be subject to its own Terms of Reference
(ToR) and will be properly established during the next stage of the Project. As such, the
names and roles of individual members should be considered indicative at this stage of the
project, and subject to change as the project progresses.

Further details of the principles around project boards and other groups are set out in the
accompanying Memorandum of Understanding.

Executive Sponsor Group

The Executive Sponsor Group will comprise the Chief Executive Officers of the three lead
organisations, lead members of the Council and the Chairs of the HWE ICB and WHHT. The
Group will meet six monthly and prior to each Gateway approval process.

Page 20

10|Page



Organisation Name Role / Title
Hertfordshire and West Jane Halpin Chief Executive

Essex Integrated Care

Board

Hertfordshire and West Rt Hon Paul Burstow Chair

Essex Integrated Care

Board

West Hertfordshire Matthew Coats Chief Executive Officer
Teaching Hospitals NHS

Trust

West Hertfordshire Phil Townsend Chair

Teaching Hospitals NHS

Trust

Dacorum Borough Council Claire Hamilton Chief Executive
Dacorum Borough Council Clir Adrian England Leader

Dacorum Borough Council ClIr Simy Dhyani Deputy Leader
Dacorum Borough Council Clir Sheron Wilkie Portfolio Holder for Place

Executive Joint Board

The Executive Joint Board, with its membership comprised of each organisation’s Chief
Executive Officers, will undertake strategic planning at the highest level and provide combined
operational decision-making for the project. Project governance will mainly be delegated to
the Joint Strategic Board. Each organisation will have its own decision making governance
arrangements as set out in Appendix 3.

Membership of the Executive Board will include the following:

Organisation Name Role / Title
Hertfordshire and West Jane Halpin Chief Executive

Essex Integrated Care

Board

West Hertfordshire Matthew Coats Chief Executive Officer
Teaching Hospitals NHS

Trust

Dacorum Borough Council Claire Hamilton Chief Executive
Central London Community | James Benson Chief Executive Officer
Healthcare NHS Trust

Hertfordshire Community Elliot Howard-Jones Chief Executive Officer
NHS Trust

Hertfordshire Partnership Karen Tayor Chief Executive Officer
University NHS Foundation

Trust

Joint Strategic Board

The project will be governed by a Joint Strategic Board, comprising director-level
representatives from WHTH, DBC, and HWE ICB. The Board will provide strategic direction,
oversight, and decision-making authority for the project, ensuring alignment with
organisational goals and objectives.

The Joint Strategic Board will be expected to:

Page 21

1l1|Page



Approve all major plans and resourcing

Authorise any significant deviation from plans and defined boundaries

Approve the start and completion of each key stage of the project

Communicate with other stakeholders and those higher in authority, where required to
help remove barriers that threaten the success of the project

e Monitor the project to ensure that its objectives remain viable through its lifetime

Neither the Joint Strategic Board nor the Joint Project Board (below) have been formally
convened at this initial stage of the project, however there is presently a general project team
in place for delivery of Stage 1.

Membership of the Joint Strategic Board will be defined alongside development of the Terms
of Reference and will be likely to include Director leads from each organisation (typically the
Project Sponsors). It is anticipated that the Joint Strategic Board would meet monthly to
review progress and set direction. This will take place as part of the relevant Joint Project
Board meeting.

Organisation Name Role / Title

Dacorum Borough Council James Doe Strategic Director of Place

Dacorum Borough Council Catherine Silva Donayre Strategic Director of
Corporate & Commercial

West Hertfordshire Alex White Chief Redevelopment

Teaching Hospitals NHS Officer

Trust

Herts West Essex ICB Sue Fogden Director Estates and Capital

Further membership to be confirmed, including representation from HCT, HPFT, and

CLCH

Joint Project Board

The Joint Project Board will sit underneath the Joint Strategic Board. Its membership will be
made up of the Project Executives from each partner organisation, who will lead the day-to-
day delivery of the next stage of the Project. A named Project Manager (to be appointed) will
report to the Joint Project Board on a regular basis on progress against the project plan.

It is anticipated that the board will meet fortnightly, as a minimum.

Organisation Name Role / Title

Dacorum Borough Council Diane Southam Assistant Director Place,
Communities and Enterprise

West Hertfordshire TBC TBC

Teaching Hospitals NHS

Trust

HWE ICB Simon Whittome Senior Development
Manager

Further membership to be confirmed, including representation from HCT, HPFT, and

CLCH

Page 22

12|Page



Joint Project Delivery Team

Delivery of the project will be undertaken by a Joint Project Delivery Team, led by a named
Project Manager (to be appointed), and will report to the Joint Project Board for direction and
management. The ToR and membership of the group will be collectively agreed and
appointed by WHTH, DBC, and HWE ICB, as necessary to support project implementation,
and will consist of a variety of multidisciplinary professionals. This may include, but not be
limited to, project managers, service leads (clinical and managerial), architects, engineers,
finance leads, and communications specialists.

Regular communication and collaboration will be maintained among project stakeholders
through scheduled meetings, progress reports, email correspondence, and stakeholder
engagement activities.

The group will meet on a regular basis (weekly/fortnightly) and will report through the Project
Manager to the Joint Project Board.

Organisation Name Role / Title

TBC TBC Project Manager

Dacorum Borough Council Caroline Saunders Head of Place and
Enterprise

West Hertfordshire TBC Hemel Health Campus

Teaching Hospitals NHS Project Director

Trust

HWE ICB Simon Whittome Senior Development
Manager

Further membership to be confirmed, including representation from HCT, HPFT, and
CLCH

Page 23

13|Page



9. Plan

9.1 Overall Project Plan (Indicative)

An indicative project plan is provided in Appendix 1 and will be developed further during the
next stage, in line with the current exploratory nature of the project. The individual stages of
the project are detailed below:

Stage 1: Project Initiation (Current — June 2024)

Establishment of Governance Structure

Development of Project Initiation Document

Development of detailed project plan for this stage of project

Development and agreement of Memorandum of Understanding

Development of briefs for consultants and advisors (as listed in Section 6, Costs)
Development of job description for Joint Project Manager post

Confirmation of funding for Stage 2

Approval to proceed to Stage 2

Stage 2: Strategic Outline Case (June 2024 — May 2025)

Recruitment of Joint Project Manager

Appointment of relevant consultants and advisors (as listed in Section 6, Costs)
Review of services considered for inclusion

High level spatial planning

Cost review

Options Appraisal (including Funding and Delivery Models)

Land review and valuation

Establishment of Risk Log, Communications Plan, Quality Plan and Project Controls
Production and Submission of Strategic Outline Case and proposals for Outline
Business Case stage

Stage 3: Outline Business Case

Design new facility to RIBA Stage 2

Completion of full cost estimates

Confirmation of procurement strategy

Secure relevant approvals

Production and Submission of Outline Business Case

Stage 4: Full Business Case

e Confirmation of full project costs

e Selection of preferred contractor(s) for delivery

e Production and Submission of Full Business Case

Stage 5: Execution

e Mobilise construction team and resources
e Begin construction of the healthcare campus

Page 24

1l4|Page



Stage 6: Monitoring and Control

Monitor project progress and performance

Implement change control procedures as required
Continuously assess and manage project risks
Ensure compliance with health and safety regulations

Stage 7: Closure

e Complete construction of the healthcare campus
e Conduct project review
e Confirm project completion

Stage 8: Post-Project Evaluation

Evaluate project performance against initial objectives and success criteria

Identify opportunities for future projects or improvements based on lessons learned
Document project outcomes

Archive project documentation for future reference and audits

Page 25

15|Page



10. Project Approach

PRINCEZ2 principles will be used to manage the project. PRINCEZ2 provides a structured
project management methodology to ensure that projects are managed on time and to
budget. Every project is assigned a Project Sponsor with the responsibility for ensuring that
the project is a success and for commissioning Quality Assurance of the deliverables arising
from the project.

The project is initiated by developing this Project Initiation Document (PID). The PID sets out
the agreed objectives and states the different roles, responsibilities, risks, milestones and
products to be developed and delivered.

11. Stakeholders

The three primary stakeholders for this project are:

e Hertfordshire and West Essex Integrated Care Board (HWE ICB)
o West Hertfordshire Hospitals NHS Trust (WHTH)
e Dacorum Borough Council (DBC)

It has been agreed by the Chief Executives of all partner organisations that HWE ICB will act
as the lead organisation as the project moves into Stage 2 (Strategic Outline Case) with
WHTH being responsible for the day-to-day management of the project team and appointed
external advisors. Clinical input and oversight must be foremost in the project.

Additional stakeholder/partners include:

Hertfordshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust (HPFT)
Hertfordshire Community NHS Trust (HCT)

Central London Community Healthcare NHS Trust (CLCH)
Primary Care represented by HWE ICB

It is anticipated that a more detailed understanding of each organisation’s participation will
be gained through the SOC Stage, with future roles and responsibilities agreed for the
subsequent stages of the project.

Other relevant stakeholders (e.g. patient groups, local retailers, additional providers) will be
identified and incorporated into the governance structure and communications plans as
required.

Page 26

16|Page



Appendix 1 — Indicative High Level Project Plan

Economic Case

Commercial Case

Financial Case

26 Management Case

27 Design

28 RIBAZ - Concept Design
29 Town Flanning Approval

30 Local approvals

EL Regional & Mational Approvals
32 | Full Business Case

33 Design & Construction

34 RIBA3 - Spacial Coordination
35 RIBA4 - Technical Design

36 Contractor Procurement

EQ Develop FBC

38 Strategic Case

39 Economic Case

40 Commercial Casa

41 Financial Case

42 Management Case

43

44 Local approvals

45 Regional & Mational Approvals
46 Start on Site

ing Approval

egional & National Approvals

Hemel Health Hub Indicative Pragramme DIRAFT
ID Task Mame 2024 g . a7 on
a1 g2 ol |04 a1 a2 ol 04 a1 a2 LEE] 04 at a2 LiL] a3 al a2 ol O
s el lalmly Jlgls_olmlnJ|F|M|A|MIJ|JIA|5|0|N|DJIFIM}AIMIJ|J|A|S oluloly F|M|.i HlJ}thlS olulp J|F|M|A|M1|J|A|5|O|N|D
1 Project Initiation
2 Finalise Mol & PID Finalise MoU & PID i
3 GATEWAY 1 .
4 Local Board Approvals  Local Board Approvals ;
5 | Strategic Outline Case ; Outi[ne Case '
L] Appoint Teams eams i I
7 | Design Design . !
8 RIBAD - Strategic Definition RIBAD - Strategic Definition |
El RIBA1 - Preparation & Brief 1 - Preparation & Brief E
0 Develop SOC E
n Strategic Case E
12 Economic Case i
13 Commercial Case i
4 Financial Case i
15 Management Case Management Case i
16 GATEWAY 2 i
7 Local approvals Local approvals I
18 Regional & National Appravals Regional & National Approvals :
19 | Qutline Business Case ; Optiine Business Case
-@_ Consultant Procurement H&mn‘um Procurement |
Qy Develop OBC D Eihc
Strategic Case Strategic Case i
) 1
1

nancial Case
Case

GATEWAY 3
Local approvals
Regional & National
L

Hemel Health Hub - High Level Pragramme v0.1.mpp

Task

D Milestone @

Summary

— Crtical . Crisical Split




Appendix 2 — NHS/ICB Decision Gateway Map

The project framework is intended to incorporate a gateway at the end of each stage of the
project lifecycle. A gateway is the decision point at which the project must present specified
information to gain approval from the appointed governance board to proceed to the next
stage.

At each gateway point, the decision will be:
e approval with instruction to proceed to next stage,
e decision deferred until further specified information is provided, or
o the project, at that stage of the project lifecycle, is rejected and closed.

The gateways for the later stages of the project will be defined during the delivery of Stage 2,
but the key items of information for Stages 1 and 2 are as follows:

Stage 1

Regular contact established with project sponsors

User groups identified and engaged

Definition and scope outlined

Initial consideration of costs, quality and risks outlined

Project Initiation Document (PID) completed and approved by sponsor
Project Initiation Document (PID) issued for approval

Stage 2

e Team engaged on project with emphasis on roles and responsibilities, vision,
deliverables, challenges, benefits and opportunities
Stakeholders involved in definition and requirements specification

o Procurement and legal teams engaged to identify the most appropriate procurement
route, if required, and include this in the business case

e Review of supply options completed. Consideration of soft market testing in advance
of the outline business case

Finance partners engaged to ensure costings are sound
e Strategic Outline Case completed

Strategic Outline case approved by the sponsor and ready to be presented to the
appointed boards for decision at gateway 2.

Page 28



Appendix 3 — Partner Organisation Governance Arrangements for Strategic Outline Case Stage

Step

Step

Hertfordshire and West
Essex Integrated Care

West Hertfordshire
Teaching Hospitals Trust

Dacorum Borough Council

Hertfordhire Partnership

University NHS

Hertfordshire Community
NHS Trust

HCT Exec Team Meeting

Central London
Community Healthcare
NHS Trust

Board Foundation Trust
HWE ICB Exec Meeting WHTH Redevelopment DBCSLT Meeting HPFT Exec Team Meeting
Programme Committee
A4 A 4 v h 4
ICB Estates and Capital Group WHTH Trust Management DBCSLT/PH HPFT Finance and Investment

v

Committee

v

b £

Committee
Stage 2 and 3 can be done out
of order

4

CLCH Hertfordshire Divisional
Group/states Group/ Trust
Strategic Estates Group

It will be a combination of the

HCT OBC Paper through PPFC
PPFC - People, Performance
Finance Committee

above
v

ICB Finance and Investment

2, 4

WHTH Finance and
Performance Committee

DBC Housing and Community
0osc

HPFT Board
Stage 2 and 3 can be done out
of order

A 4

CLCH Capital Investment
Group

HCT FBC Paper through PPFC

A 4

!

ICB Primary Care
Commissioning Committee

WHTH Trust Board

DBC Cabinet

CLCH Executive Leadership
Team

A 4

HCT Board

CLCH Finance Committee and
Board




0€ abed

Appendix 4 — Risk Register (Draft)

organisations causing a delay to deliver

Risk Description Impact Likelihood Score Mitigation

Failure to identify sufficient funding source(s) on 3 5 15 Work with partner

identified options would result in the project being organisations to consider

impossible to deliver all possible sources of
funding

Local and/or regional opposition could prevent delivery 3 3 9 Maintain open discussions

or significantly alter the scope of the scheme to assess and address any
stakeholder opposition

Failure to secure disposal of WHTH land in Hemel 3 2 6 Work with specialist

Hempstead would reduce available funding and or advisors to obtain

prevent WHTH service relocation assurance around land
value

2024 General Election and potential change of 2 2 4 Monitor outcome of

Government could affect the possibility of this scheme election(s) and continue to

proceeding prepare compelling case for
change

Lack of capacity and resource in any of the partner 3 3 9 Prompt appointment of

dedicated Project Manager.
Details project plan and
meetings etc scheduled in
advance




Appendix 5 - HWE ICS Strategy and Strategic Framework

HWE ICS 10-year Integrated Care Strategy approved December 2022

2755 _

ommunites and
Strategic places healthy and
Priorities

sustainable

[ o age

well and support people livng with life -long

with o a health conditior
disabilites, and their families

HWE ICB’s Strategic Framework

Our mission Better, healthier and longer lives for all

H i i i Ensuring the NHS
We will achieve Irproving physical and :
2 mental health across our Tackig p Y supports broader social
this by population experience and outcomes and value for money and economic
development.
.
Increase healthy Increase the Achieve a
In the first 35 ife expectancy, Give every child Improve access numbers of balanced
3 and reduce the beststartin to health and citizens taking financial
years we will inequality life care services steps to improve position
their wellbeing annually
3 Setting direction Supporting, Enabling Using data and
The ICB will deliver for the NHS in o "E‘N:S PRI ng with and improvement evidence to
resources fairly ot n re and driving
:t:md:‘ = andeffectively || SMPowering our — €
and West Essex

‘ with our pantners change, witha
people

focus on quality

AR R

i
BT

B

-

Page 31

generate insight
and assess

impact




Appendix 6 — Memorandum of Understanding (To Follow Separately)

Page 32

22|Page



cc abed

Heath Campus Project Board

Appendix 1

Project Sponsor

Catherine Silva Donayre

Strategic Director — Corporate and Commercial

Project Sponsor

James Doe

Strategic Director — Place

Membership

Name

Title

Project Executive

Diane Southam

Assistant Director — Place, Communities and Enterprise

Project Manager

TBD

TBD

Legal Mark Brookes Assistant Director — Legal and Democratic Services
Finance Nigel Howcutt Chief Finance Officer

Property Mark Pinnell Assistant Director - Property
Assurance Natasha Chambers PMO Manager

Project Support

James Wrathall

Corporate Graduate




	Agenda
	5 Ward Issues
	Smiles for Dacorum

	11 Work Programme
	Hemel Health Campus PID v1.5a Committee Submitted
	Project Board Appendix 1


